



# **Odesi Deposit Guide (using Borealis Dataverse DDI 2.5)**

**Reference Guide** 

February, 2024

Odesi Markit! Program

## Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION3
1. OBTAINING AND PREPARING THE DATASET3
a. Obtaining a Dataset: 3
b. Correcting and editing a Dataset that is already published in Odesi Dataverse:4
c. Preparing the Dataset4
2. CREATING AN ACCOUNT AND LOGIN PROCEDURES 4
a. Create an Account:4
b. Logging into Borealis:5
3. NAVIGATING THE ODESI DATAVERSE 5
4. ODESI DATAVERSE PERMISSIONS6
5. CREATING A DATASET6
a. Adding a New Dataset:6
b. Create Citation Metadata Record:7
c. Add Files:7
6. ADDING METADATA AND EDITING A DATASET9
a. Add and Edit Files:9
b. Add Metadata:10
c. Add Dataset Access Terms:11
7. VARIABLE METADATA12
a. Accessing the Data Curation Tool12
If you are using a pop-up blocker it will prevent the Data Curation Tool from opening. Either disable your pop-up blocker or permit borealisdata.ca to send pop-ups and use redirects 12
b. Variable Groups12
c. Variable Metadata Documentation13
8. PUBLISHING A DATASET:14
9. APPENDIX A: PREPARING AND WORKING WITH AN .SPSS SYNTAX FILE14
1. Working with an .sps syntax file (creating an SPSS system file .sav)
2. Working with an SPSS system file (.sav) file17
10. APPENDIX B: QUICK MARK-UP FILES 17
11. APPENDIX C: DEPOSITING SYNTHETIC DATA18
12. APPENDIX D: DEPOSITING RESTRICTED DATA19
13. APPENDIX E: SPSS & FRENCH CHARACTERS 21

#### **INTRODUCTION**

This guide is centered on marking up and publishing Statistics Canada microdata files for Odesi. In some cases, marking up other files - such as Public Opinion Polls or Surveys from non-Statistics Canada sources - will follow the same steps outlined in this guide; however, the data file will come from different sources and different DDI fields may be used for marking up public opinion polls or non-Statistics Canada files. Mark-up students should consult their supervisors for further information when marking up non-Statistics Canada files.

Detailed guidance on best practices for curating metadata in the <u>Odesi repository</u> is available in the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices Guide</u>.

#### 1. OBTAINING AND PREPARING THE DATASET

You will need to have local copies of the datasets - including microdata and aggregate data files to work with in order to import to Borealis, add metadata, and publish the result in an Odesi Collection Dataverse. In most cases, the DLI contact for your institution will obtain local copies of the dataset, since they have the passwords required to access the Statistics Canada files. Mark-up students should consult their supervisors to retrieve the files from the appropriate source.

#### a. Obtaining a Dataset:

- i. Statistics Canada may already provide a copy of the data file and metadata. Check with your supervisor to obtain a copy from Statistics Canada's Data Liberation Initiative (EFT) or an equivalent site.
- **ii.** If Statistics Canada has not provided the data file, Mark-up students need to ask their supervisor to download the required data file.
- **iii.** Download all available datasets and organize them. These files may be available in the form of an ASCII text file (.txt or .dat) and a syntax file (.sps) etc., but will also include full system files in SPSS, SAS, STATA, and csv format. See Appendix A if you are working with an .sps syntax file.
- **iv.** While documentation in .xml format typically will not have been created at this early stage, check for any available metadata in any format to include or reuse.

**v.** Documentation in the form of a codebook, user guide, and/or a questionnaire should be available along with the data files (.pdf format usually).

#### 2. CREATING AN ACCOUNT AND LOGIN PROCEDURES

#### a. Create an Account:

i. If you do not already have an account, navigate to the <u>Borealis homepage</u> and click the "Login" option in the top right corner of the page.

**Note:** If your institution is already configured to use Shibboleth login, you can simply sign in to create an account. Logging in with your institution's Shibboleth login credentials will automatically create an account for you.

**ii.** Click the "Sign Up" button and complete the "Account Information" form. The Affiliation field will auto-fill with the institution associated with your email address.

### Account - Borealis

Account Information		
You can also create a Da	ataverse account w	rith one of our other log in options.
	Email * 😡	1
	Affiliation * 🕄	
	Username * 🕢	Create a valid username of 2 to 60 characters in length containing letters (a-Z), numbers (0-9), dashes (-), underscores (_), and periods (.).
	Password * 🕢	Your password must contain: • At least 6 characters (passwords of at least 20 characters are exempt from all other requirements) • At least 1 character from each of the following types: letter, numeral

- **iii.** After filling out the required account information, check the box at the bottom of the page indicating that you have read and accept the Borealis General Terms of Use, and then click the "Create Account" button.
- iv. Send your username to your supervisor. Your supervisor will add your username to the ODESI Admin Group which gives you special permissions to deposit data in the Odesi Dataverse.

lorealis			Search 🗸	User Guide	Support	English 👻	Log In
	🞝 Log In						
	Log in or sign up with your inst creation. Leaving your institution	titutional account — more info on? Please contact Borealis S	mation about account upport for assistance.				
	Your Institution	Please select	✓ Continue				
		Allow me to type the name of	my institution				
	Institution not listed?						
	Username/Email Sign	Up					

#### b. Logging into Borealis:

- i. After navigating to the <u>Borealis homepage</u>, click the "Login" button in the top right corner of the page. You will have the option to login using your username/email or through your institutional login.
- ii. If you want to login through your institution, select your institution from the drop down window and click the "Continue" button. This will direct you to your institution's login page. Login with your institutional credentials and you will land in your institution's Dataverse.
- iii. To view all of the Dataverses in Borealis, click the Borealis logo in the top left corner to return to the homepage, and then click the "Explore Borealis" button OR click the "Borealis >" link located underneath the name of the Dataverse from within your current Dataverse.

#### 3. NAVIGATING THE ODESI DATAVERSE

The <u>Odesi dataverse</u> contains thousands of datasets, including collections of Survey Microdata, Public Opinion Polls, Administrative Data, Summary Data, and relevant documentation. Users can search across data collections as well as filter, explore, tabulate, visualize, download, and subset datasets and variables.

a. The Dataverses in Borealis correspond to the various institutions that publish in Borealis.
 They are accessible through a preview panel across the top of the page. For Odesi
 publications, the collections dataverses exist within the <u>Odesi Dataverse</u>.

b	orealis			Search 🕶	User Guide Support	English 👻	Log
Boreal	is For testing Borea	alis, go to the de	mo site. // Pour tester Borealis, allez sur	r notre site de démonstration.			
.ht	Metrics 13,0	017,061 Download	5			Contact	🕑 Shar

- **b.** When you visit a specific Dataverse, there will be a description of the collections that exist within that Dataverse. For the Odesi Dataverse, these collections include Public Use Microdata Files, Aggregate Data, etc. Determine which of these Odesi collections the Dataset you are working with belongs to and navigate to that collection's Dataverse before creating the Dataset in Borealis. This will ensure that the Dataset is published under the proper collection.
- **c.** If you are interested in working with other collections in Borealis, please refer to the Borealis User Guide or contact the Institutional Collection owner.

#### 4. ODESI DATAVERSE PERMISSIONS

There are two permission groups in the Odesi Dataverse: ODESIAdmin and OdesiStudent. Members of the ODESIAdmin group are assigned an Admin role and have access to view and edit everything in the Odesi Dataverse. Members of the OdesiStudent group are assigned a Contributor Plus role, which allows them to create new Dataverses and Datasets, edit Dataset License + Terms, edit Dataset Permissions, and publish Datasets. All new students will be added to the OdesiStudent Group.

Note: For information concerning permissions for restricted data, see Appendix E.

#### 5. CREATING A DATASET

#### a. Adding a New Dataset:

In the Odesi Dataverse, click the "+ Add Data" button and select "New Dataset" from the drop-down menu. If you do not see the "+ Add Data" button, it is because you do not have permission to deposit data in that Dataverse. Contact your supervisor to be granted deposit permissions. Do not create a new Dataverse unless directed to do so by your supervisor.

Add Data ▼
 New Dataverse
 New Dataset

#### b. Create Citation Metadata Record:

i. Ensure you are creating the dataset in the appropriate Host Dataverse.

Host Dataverse 🕢	Changing the host dataverse will clear any fields you may have entered data into.
	Statistics Canada Public Use Microdata Files (PUMFs) / Collection de fichiers de microdonnées à (

ii. For Odesi publications, there are two metadata templates that you can use: the Odesi -StatCan files template (for English and French) and the Generic Odesi template. The templates will provide instructions on required metadata fields, controlled vocabularies, and other Odesi-specific practices when creating metadata.

Odesi - StatCan files [2023]	-
CC0 1.0 Public Domain	
Generic Odesi Template [2023]	
Odesi - StatCan files [2023]	
Odesi - StatCan French files [2023]	

- Required Fields: There are a number of Citation Metadata fields that must be filled in order to save a Dataset. These mandatory fields are indicated by an asterisk \* and include:
  - Title
  - Author -> Name
  - Contact -> Email
  - Description -> Text
  - Subject

There are additional required metadata fields that will be accessible once the Dataset has been saved. You will need to save the Dataset and then add the metadata to these fields following the steps in <u>Section 5: Adding Metadata and Editing a Dataset</u>. For more information on required metadata fields, see the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices Guide</u>.

 iv. Some metadata fields are repeatable, meaning they can record more than one value. Repeatable fields can be entered using the "+" button located on the right of the field. Refer to the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices Guide</u> for information about which fields are repeatable.

#### c. Add Files:

**Before uploading,** prepare a deposit package (.zip) that contains all available data and documentation files in different formats (e.g. SPSS, SAS, STATA, Excel, CSV, TXT, PDF). Dataverse ingests certain tabular data formats (e.g. SPSS, Excel, CSV, STATA, etc.) and creates a derivative .TAB file. The SPSS data file is always used to create the .TAB file and all other data formats that are not documentation should be zipped (.zip) to ensure that they are not converted to TAB files.

**Note:** When uploading all the files, please note a .zip package containing the SPSS, documentation and pre-zipped other data formats is preferred.

- i. Files can be uploaded either by clicking the "Select Files to Add" button or by dragging and dropping the files into the widget.
- ii. Files can also be added after the Dataset is saved.

**Note:** The maximum size of file that can be imported is approximately 3 Gigabytes, and 500 Megabytes for tabular files (.spss). Larger files can also be zipped and then uploaded.

Change View	Table Tree
<ul> <li>Command Files</li> </ul>	
BSW_i.sas (136	B)
BSW_i.sps (213	B)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_SAS_SAS.zip (54.4 KB)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_SPSS_sps.zip (40.4 KB)
🖻 🕞 Data	
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018.tab (254.4 MB)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_BSW_ASCII.zip (279.8 MB)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_BSW_SAS_sas7bdat.zip (817.8 MB)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_SAS_ASCII.zip (14.3 MB)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_SAS_sas7bdat.zip (20.4 MB)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_SPSS_sav.zip (18.6 MB)
CCHS_Annual_2	017_2018_Stata_dta.zip (14.1 MB)
<ul> <li>Documentation</li> </ul>	
Bootstrap_E.pdf	(431.5 KB)
CCHS 2017-2018	8 PUMF Complement User Guide.pdf (671.7 KB)
CCHS 2017-2018	8 PUMF Data Dictionary.pdf (3.1 MB)
CCHS 2017-2018	8 PUMF Derived Variables.pdf (1.1 MB)
CCHS 2017-2018	8 PUMF Quality assurance guidelines.pdf (107.8 KB
CCHS 2017-2018	8 Questionnaire.pdf (1.4 MB)
CCHS 2017-2018	8 User Guide.pdf (2.2 MB)
Statistics Canada	a Open Licence.pdf (252.9 KB)

Files	
Multiple f	file upload/download methods are available for this dataset. Once you upload a file using one of these methods, your choice will be locked in for this dataset.
Upload	d with HTTP via your browser 🔺
Select	files or drag and drop into the upload widget. Maximum of 1,000 files per upload. Tabular file ingest is limited to 1.9 GB.
+ 9	Select Files to Add
	Drag and drop files here.
+ :	Drag and drop files here.

- iii. When adding files, you should include all file formats of the data that are released by Statistics Canada but only make edits <u>(Section 6)</u> to the .spss file. If the release only includes an .spss file, consult your supervisor to determine if file conversion is necessary.
- iv. Drag and drop files into the widget OR click the "+ Select Files to Add" to open a file browser and choose the desired file(s). If you upload the wrong file, select the check box on the left, then click the "Edit" button and choose "Delete."
- v. File Metadata: Make sure the file name is correct and add a file tag (either "Data" or "Documentation") by clicking the three-dot menu, which distinguishes the file between Data files and Documentation files. Fill in the description field using the controlled vocabulary found in the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices Guide</u>.

-		🖍 Edit 🗸
	File Name testfile.txt	
	File Path 0	
~	Plain Text MD5: 5a5a7057573cf668e02a6556804c85b4	
	Description Add file description	Edit Options 🖍
		Tags

vi. If you need to restrict access to the data file(s), select the checkbox to the left of the data file(s) then click the "Edit" button and select "Restrict." Fill in the Terms of Access for Restricted Files and click the "Save Changes" button.

**Note:** See <u>Appendix E</u> for information on assigning access permissions.

 vii. Once all of the files are uploaded and tags and restrictions are set, click the "Save Changes" button in the bottom left corner of the page. After inputting the Citation Metadata and adding files, click the "Save Dataset" button. It may take a while for tabular

9

files to ingest. Always wait until the files have finished uploading before proceeding to add or edit metadata.

#### d. Correcting and editing a Dataset that is already published in Odesi Dataverse:

You will be able to edit the files and metadata by navigating to the Dataset and selecting an option from the "Edit Dataset" drop down menu.

If you do not have permission to edit a Dataset, contact your supervisor and they will adjust your permissions.

#### 6. ADDING METADATA AND EDITING A DATASET

Once a Dataset has been saved, you will need to add additional Metadata as well as Terms and Conditions to the Dataset before publishing. These features can be accessed either by clicking the "Edit Dataset" drop-down button in the top right, or by navigating to the "Metadata" tab at the bottom of the page and clicking the "Add + Edit Metadata" button on the right.

Draft Unpublished			
Cite Dataset	"Test", https://doi.org/10.5072/FK2/05YPTI, Borealis, DRAFT VERSION 📀	Dataset Metri	uolish Dalaset Edit Dataset • Files (Opload) Metadata Terms
Description 🕢 Subject 🕢 License/Data Use Agreement	Test Other CC0 1.0	0 Downloads	Permissions  Private URL Thumbnails + Widgets Delete Dataset
Files Metadata Terms	Versions		Add + Edit Metadata

#### a. Add and Edit Files:

Toct

Once the Dataset has been saved, you will be able to add and edit files. To do so, click the Edit Dataset drop down button and select "File (Upload)" OR Select the File tab and click the "+ Upload Files" button. Follow the instructions from <u>Section 4. c</u>. to complete the remaining steps.

#### b. Add Metadata:

When creating a metadata record, correct spelling and grammar are of the utmost importance. It may seem like you are repeating yourself when you enter metadata in multiple sections and that is because you are! Remember that the different fields into which you are entering information will appear in different parts of the finished document and must be complete on their own.

Detailed guidance and best practices for curating metadata, including the required fields and controlled vocabularies used for Odesi publications, are available in the <u>Odesi</u> <u>Metadata Best Practices Guide</u>.

i. Click the "Edit Dataset" drop-down button and select "Metadata", or navigate to the Metadata tab and click the "Add + Edit Metadata" button.

Citation Metadata 🔨			
Title * 🕄	Enter title		
Subtitle 🕄			
Alternative Title 🕢			
Alternative URL 🕢	Enter full URL, starting with http://		
Other ID 🕄	Agency 🕄	ldentifier 🕢	
			+
Author * 🕄	Name * 🕢	Affiliation 🕢	
	FamilyName, GivenName or Organizatic		+
	Identifier Scheme 🕄	ldentifier 📀	
	Select		
Contact * 📀	Name 🕢	Affiliation 📀	
	FamilyName, GivenName or Organizatic		+
	E-mail * 📀		

 Following the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices</u> <u>Guide</u>, input metadata into the appropriate fields. Required fields are marked with an asterisk \*. Hovering over the question icon beside the name of each field will reveal a description of the field, but the instructions in the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices Guide</u> always take precedence over these descriptions.

Geospatial Metadata 🗙
Social Science and Humanities Metadata *
Astronomy and Astrophysics Metadata 🗙
Life Sciences Metadata 🗙
Journal Metadata 💙

- iii. The Citation Metadata drop-down menu will be open when you land on the page. There are additional drop down menus at the bottom of the page. The Geospatial Metadata and the Social Science and Humanities Metadata drop-down menus both contain required fields for Odesi documentation.
- iv. If a field is repeatable, use the "+" button to the right of the field to create a new input (e.g. text box or drop-down window) for that field.
- v. For guidance on filling out the metadata fields, see the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices</u> <u>Document</u>.
- vi. Once all of the required fields are completed, click the "Save Changes" button.

#### c. Add Dataset Access Terms:

- i. Click the "Edit Dataset" drop-down button and select "Terms" OR navigate to the Terms tab and click the "Edit Terms Requirements" button.
- **ii.** In the Dataset Terms field, choose a License/Data Use Agreement. The default option is a Creative Commons CCO 1.0 Universal Public Domain Dedication.
- iii. For Odesi publications, select the Custom Dataset Terms template and fill in the Terms field with the appropriate license. Using the Odesi StatCan files template will fill in the Terms of Use field with the Statistics Canada Open Licence.

**CAUTION:** Do **NOT** use the Statistics Canada Open Licence option in the License/Data Use Agreement drop-down menu (it does not map to DDI at this point).

Terms	
Dataset Terms 🔺	
License/Data Use Agreement	This dataset will be published under the terms specified below. Our Community Norms as well as good scientific practices expect that proper credit is given via citation.
Terms of Use * 🕄	Custom Dataset Terms CC-BY 4.0 CC BY-SA 4.0 CC BY-NC 4.0 CC BY-NC-SA 4.0
Confidentiality Declaration 🕄	CC BY-ND 4.0 CC BY-NC-ND 4.0 Claticities Conada Open Licence Custom Dataset Terms

iv. See <u>Appendix E</u> if you are publishing Restricted Data.

#### 7. VARIABLE METADATA

#### a. Accessing the Data Curation Tool

Navigate to the file that you would like to edit. Click the three-dot drop-down and select "Data Curation Tool." The Data Curation Tool will open in a new tab.

1 File	🖍 Edit Files 🕶
Test_Datafile.tab Tabular Data - 8.6 MB Deposited Feb 7, 2023 60 Variables, 86555 Observations UNF:6:6hUWLQQ== 4	● ₹. :.
	Edit Options 🖍 Metadata
	Restrict
<odesi></odesi>	Replace
	Delete
	configure Options 🐱
Copyright © 2023	Data Curation Tool

**Note:** If you are using a pop-up blocker it will prevent the Data Curation Tool from opening. You will need to either disable your pop-up blocker or permit <u>borealisdata.ca</u> to send pop-ups and use redirects.

Once you have opened a tabular data file in the Data Curation Tool, always check to ensure that the file is ready for public use. You will need to check for the following:

- an id variable;
- all the variable labels are correct and unique (avoid lengthy labels/repeats that read as a literal question);
- all the value labels are correct;
- all the missing values have been declared;
- all the recoded variables are correct; and
- the data are not weighted.

#### b. Variable Groups

Variables that may share a common subject, arise from the interpretation of a single question, or are linked by some other factor are arranged into Variable Groups. The Variable Groups can be found in the documentation provided by the data producer (codebook, data dictionary, etc).

For best practices on creating variable group metadata, see the <u>Odesi Metadata Best</u> <u>Practices Guide</u>.

- i. In the Data Curation Tool, click the "Add Group +" button on the left-hand side of the page to create a variable group. The Variable Groups will be listed in the column on the left-hand side underneath the "All Variables" group. It is Odesi best practice to arrange the Variable Groups in the same order as they appear in the documentation provided by the data producer.
- **ii.** Once you have created and named the group, return to the list of All Variables and click the checkboxes next to the variables that belong to that group. Once you have selected all of the variables that belong to a particular Variable Group, scroll to the top of the page and select the Variable Group from the drop-down list in the centre of the page. The variables will be added to the Variable Group you select.
- **iii.** Follow the supporting documentation for the dataset to find information about naming the variable groups and to determine which variables belong to each group.



#### c. Variable Metadata Documentation

- i. Click the pencil icon to add and edit metadata for each variable.
- **ii.** A window will open with metadata fields for you to fill out and you will also be able to add the variable to a group.
- iii. If the variable you are working with is a weight variable, the "Is Weight" checkbox must be selected to indicate the variable's status as a weight variable. All other variables will need to be weighted with that variable by selecting the weight variable from the "Weight Variable" drop-down menu.

**Note:** When weighting all other variables, make sure the weight variable is **NOT** selected, otherwise the weight indication will be removed.

- iv. When you have finished adding the variable metadata, click the "Update" button to apply the changes.
- v. Once you have finished marking up the Variable Metadata and adding the variables to groups, click the "Save to Dataverse" button to save your work.

/ariable Information		Province	
טו v5217196	Name PROV	Literal Question	
Province	39	Interviewer Instructions	
iteral Question	3	Post Question	
nterviewer Instructions		Universe	
ost Question		Notes	
Iniverse	-21		h
lotes		Group	¥
	<u> </u>	Weight Variable	
roup	-		

#### 8. PUBLISHING A DATASET:

Once you have completed all of the steps described above, the Dataset is ready to be published. Navigate to the Dataset and click the "Publish Dataset" button on the right side of the page.

Access Da	taset <del>-</del>
Publish D	ataset
Edit Data	iset 🗸
Contact Owner	Share

If you have added Access Terms to the Dataset, a popup window will open for you to confirm that the Terms are correct before publishing. After confirming the Access Terms, click "Continue" to finish the publication process.

#### 9. APPENDIX A: PREPARING AND WORKING WITH AN .SPSS SYNTAX FILE

Before marking up the file (entering the metadata into Borealis), always check to ensure that the file is ready for public use. You will need to check for the following:

• there is an id variable;

- all the variable labels are correct and unique (avoid lengthy labels/repeats that read as a literal question);
- all the value labels are correct;
- all the missing values have been declared;
- all the recoded variables are correct;
- any alphanumeric variables are truly alphanumeric; and
- the data are not weighted.

This guide assumes that you will perform these checks using SPSS. Generally, you will have either an SPSS system file (.sav format – obtained from Odesi or Statistics Canada), or you will have a combination of an ASCII text file (.txt or .dat) and a syntax file (.sps – obtained from Statistics Canada EFT site). The following will describe how to prepare the dataset in each case.

### 1. Working with an .sps syntax file (creating an SPSS system file .sav)

Open the syntax file (.sps file) by double-clicking on it. The .sps file is the program file which converts the raw data file (ASCII text file) to an SPSS system file (.sav).

**Note:** Statistics Canada will sometimes release the syntax file as reading cards or layout cards with each section of the syntax in its own file. These files usually have different extensions but can be opened with a text editor (e.g. Notepad++) and merged to create the syntax file which can then be saved as a .sps file. Reading/Layout cards extensions:

- .cde/.cdf value labels in English/French
- .lay record layout
- .lbe/.lbf variable labels in English/French
- .mvs missing values

### a) Modify the SPSS command code

See sample SPSS syntax file (next page) for instructions on editing the syntax file. Tips on editing SPSS command code:

- all commands end with a period.
- all commands start in the first column; subsequent lines in the same command are indented by 1-2 columns.
- all lines of text are in quotation marks
- LRECL (Logical Record Length) can be determined by looking at the last position of the last variable on the raw data file, or the last number at the end of the DATA LIST FILE.

#### b) Run the file

SPSS will run the syntax file's code against the referenced raw data file.

- i) Save the file.
- ii) From the Menu bar, use the menu command:  $\mathbf{Run} \rightarrow \mathbf{All}$  to run the code. When it is done, "SPSS processor is ready" will appear at the bottom of the screen.

#### c) Check results

- Check that the SPSS System File (.sav) was saved to the disk location you specified at the bottom of your SPSS program (.sav file will have been added to the working directory / folder).
- ii) From within the <u>data editor</u> screen (the one that looks like a spreadsheet), use the menu command: Analyze →Descriptive Statistics → Frequencies.
- iii) Choose an appropriate variable (e.g. Province, or some other categorized variable).
- iv) Run the analysis and compare your results (e.g. number of cases) with the number of cases indicated in the "Readme" file or Data Dictionary for the survey .
- v) The .sav file can now be imported into Borealis.



#### 2. Working with an SPSS system file (.sav) file.

If you are starting directly with a .sav file, you do not need to go through the process described in part one above.

- Open the .sav file in SPSS.
- Go through the checklist listed at the beginning of this Appendix.
- Make any required changes.
- Save the file.
- The .sav file can now be imported into Borealis.

#### **10. APPENDIX B: QUICK MARK-UP FILES**

When a data file is in high demand, a quick mark-up of the file is done to get it published within a few days of its release. Quick mark-up is not a preferred practice and it is the responsibility of the school that publishes the quick file to complete the mark-up.

- a. ODESI Mark-up list
  - i. If the survey is not listed, add it.
  - ii. Status column add "Quick file".
  - iii. Add the name of the school responsible for the quick mark-up to the "OCUL School Responsible" column.
- **b.** Mark-up the file making sure that the following sections are completed:
  - i. Document Description all fields.
  - ii. Study Description as much of the metadata as possible.
    - Using the XML file from the previous version (if available) of a survey will make doing this section much faster.
  - iii. Variable groups.
  - iv. Other Materials.
- c. Publish the quick file.

**Note:** If you are not able to complete the full mark-up, send an email to the MarkIt! Group (<u>ocul-odesi@lists.uwaterloo.ca</u>) to ask someone else to finish the mark-up.

- **d.** Complete the markup of the file.
  - i. Add question text, universe and notes.
  - ii. Review the metadata to make sure that all fields are filled out.
  - iii. Republish file.
- e. Update the ODESI Markit list
  - i. Status column: change from "Quick file" to "Completed".

- ii. Add school name to the OCUL School Responsible column.
- iii. Add date completed to the Date Completed column.

#### **11. APPENDIX C: DEPOSITING SYNTHETIC DATA**

**Note:** Synthetic data files are not real data, that is, they are not the same as microdata or aggregate data files. Therefore, they require different mark-up procedures.

#### SPSS

- Open the dataset in SPSS.
- Eyeball the data to make sure that every variable has a label.

#### Dataverse

Create a Dataset and begin creating the metadata.

Follow the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices Guide</u> for entering the metadata **EXCEPT** for the following tags:

- Title <titl>2.1.1.1
  - All titles, subtitles, alternative titles start with "Synthetic: Title"
    - e.g. Synthetic: Aboriginal Children's Survey, 2006 [Canada]
- Alternative title <altTitl> 2.1.1.3 and 2.1.1.4
  - Do **not** enter a parallel title.
- Other ID <IDNo> 2.1.1.5
  - Follow the formula given in the <u>Odesi Metadata Best Practices Guide</u> with the addition of the word "synthetic" at the beginning of the ID
    - Example 1: synthetic-cchs-E-2012-mental-health
    - Example 2: synthetic-nlscy-E-1998-1999-c-3-primary-file
- Date of Collection <collDate>
  - Do **not** enter the "Date of collection."
- Description <abstract> 2.2.2
  - The following paragraph must be added to the Abstract. It should precede the description of the survey:

"Please note: This is a Synthetic data file, also known as a Dummy File – it is **NOT** real data. This synthetic data file should **NOT** be used for purposes other than to develop and test computer programs that are to be submitted by remote access. Each record in the synthetic file matches the format and content parameters of the real Statistics Canada Master File with which it is associated, but the data

themselves have been 'made up'. They do **NOT** represent responses from real individuals and should **NOT** be used for actual analysis. These data are provided solely for the purpose of testing statistical package 'code' (e.g. SPSS syntax, SAS programs, etc.) in preparation for analysis using the associated Master File in a Research Data Centre, by Remote Job Submission, or by some other means of secure access. If statistical analysis 'code' works with the synthetic data, researchers can have some confidence that the same code will run successfully against the Master File data in the Research Data Centres."

- Kind of data <dataKind> 2.2.3.10
  - Synthetic data
- Time Method <timeMeth> 2.3.1.2
  - Do **NOT** enter the "Time Method"
- Data Collector <dataCollector> 2.3.1.3
  - Do **NOT** enter the "Data Collector"
- Sampling Procedure <sampProc> 2.3.1.4
  - Do **NOT** enter the "Sampling Procedure"
- Collection mode <collMode> 2.3.1.6
  - Do **NOT** enter the "Mode of Data Collection"
- Weighting <weight> 2.3.1.12
  - Do **NOT** enter the "Weighting"
- Variable Groups <varGrp> 4.1
  - Variable groups do **NOT** have to be added to the synthetic files

#### 12. APPENDIX D: DEPOSITING RESTRICTED DATA

Access to collections and datasets are controlled through the Permissions function, which uses preset roles. Roles can be assigned at the collection, dataset, or file level. Once assigned, that role applies to all collections and datasets in the hierarchy below the location where the role was assigned. In other words, if a role is assigned at the collection level, that role is applicable for all datasets within that collection. Permissions for Odesi's restricted data collections are assigned at the Dataverse level and are therefore applied to all Datasets in the collection.

Note: Users need to have an Admin role in order to edit and change Dataverse permissions.

i. After you have created a Dataverse, click the "Edit" drop-down button and select "Permissions".

	🔀 Contact 🖸	Share	Publish	🖍 Edit 🗸
8	TEST DV (Univ testdvrestric	ersity of To	pronto)	
Gener	ral Information			
Them	e + Widgets			
Permi	ssions			
Group	S			
Datas	et Templates			
Datas	et Guestbooks			
Featu	red Dataverses			
Delete	e Dataverse			

**ii.** From here, you can set restrictions for who can add to your Dataverse and which users and groups have access to your Dataverse. By default, users have to request access for depositing in your Dataverse and can freely access files in your Dataverse.



- iii. The "Permissions" drop-down menu allows you to choose who can deposit data in your Dataverse. The "Users/Groups" drop down menu allows you to assign roles which give users and groups certain permissions for depositing and accessing data. A glossary of the various roles you can assign is available under the "Roles" drop-down menu.
- iv. For restricted ODESI publications, click the "Assign Roles to Users/Groups" button and assign the "File downloader" role to all the applicable institutions, making sure to select the appropriate access method.

Assign Role			×
Grant permissions to users and Users/Groups *	groups by assigning them a role. Enter User/Group Name		
Role *	<ul> <li>Admin</li> <li>Contributor</li> <li>Contributor Plus</li> <li>Curator</li> <li>Dataset Creator</li> <li>Dataverse + Dataset Creator</li> <li>Dataverse Creator</li> <li>File Downloader</li> <li>Member</li> </ul>	These are the permissions associated with the selected role.	
Save Changes Cancel			-

#### 13. APPENDIX E: SPSS & FRENCH CHARACTERS

When importing .sav files into Borealis for French-language studies, or with any special characters, you may experience issues where accented characters do not render properly. This problem started with SPSS 21 when SPSS began supporting Unicode in their files. The work-around for this problem is to turn off Unicode in SPSS. This change cannot be made if you have an open data file.

- **a.** Open a blank file in SPSS.
- **b.** Go to "Edit  $\rightarrow$  Options".
  - i. Click on the "Language" tab.
  - **ii.** In the "Character Encoding for Data and Syntax" box select "Locale's writing system". The Locale can be set for "English" or "OS writing system".
  - iii. Click Apply, then OK.
- c. Resave your data file with this new setting before importing into Borealis.

Charts       Prior Tables       File Locations       Scripts       Multiple Imputations       Syntax Editor         General       Language       Viewer       Data       Currency       Output         Language       Output       English       If you use a combination of right-to-left (such as Arabic or Hebrew) languages and left-to-right languages (such as English), select which direction text should flow.         User Interface:       English       Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         O Locale's writing system       Ins setting will take effect the next time Statistics is started.         If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         Data       English-UK         English-US       English-Canada         English-Australia       Japanese	Charts       Prior Tables       File Locations       Scripts       Multiple Imputations       Syntax Editor         General       Language       Viewer       Data       Currency       Output         Language       English       If you use a combination of right-to-left (such as Arabic or Hebrew) languages and left-to-right languages (such as English), select which direction text should flow.       Bi-directional Text       If you use a combination of right-to-left (such as Arabic or Hebrew) languages and left-to-right languages (such as English), select which direction text should flow.       Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       Individual words will still flow in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         Base Text Direction:       Automatic	Options					
General       Language       Viewer       Data       Currency       Output         Language       Output       English       If you use a combination of right-to-left (such as Arabic or Hebrew) languages and left-to-right languages (such as English), select which direction text should flow.         User Interface:       English       Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       Individual words will take effect the next time Statistics is started.         Logale:       English       If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         Outcode (universal chara       English-Custalia       Base Text Direction:       Automatic         Base Text Direction:       Automatic       Iteration:       Iteration:	General       Language       Viewer       Data       Currency       Output         Language       Output:       English       If you use a combination of right-to-left (such as Arabic or Hebrew) languages and left-to-right languages (such as English), select which direction text should flow.         User Interface:       English       It you use a combination of right-to-left (such as Arabic or Hebrew) languages and left-to-right languages (such as English), select which direction text should flow.         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         O Unicode (universal chara English-UK En	Charts Pivot Tai	bles File Locat	ions Scripts	Multip	le Imputations	Syntax Editor
Language       Bi-directional Text         Output:       English         User Interface:       English         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         Logale:       English         Logale:       English         OS writing system       If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         Character encoding can datasets are open       English-Australia Japanese	Language       Bi-directional Text         Output:       English         User Interface:       English         Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       If you use a combination of right-to-left (such as Arabic or Hebrew) languages and left-to-right languages (such as English), select which direction text should flow.         Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice.         © Locale's writing system       This setting will take effect the next time Statistics is started.         If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         Duricode (universal chara English-UK english-Canada English-Australia Japanese Korean       Automatic	General	Language	Viewer	Data	Currency	Output
User Interface: English Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice. This setting will take effect the next time Statistics is started. Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice. This setting will take effect the next time Statistics is started. If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart. Base Text Direction: Automatic is a section with the section is the syntax Editor is a section in the Syntax	User Interface: English Individual words will still flow in the correct direction depending on their language. Only overall text runs are affected by this choice. This setting will take effect the next time Statistics is started. If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart. Base Text Direction: Automatic	Language Output:	English	Bi-di     If you     Heb     Eng	rectional Text — u use a combina rew) languages ish), select whic	ation of right-to-left (suc and left-to-right langua ch direction text should	h as Arabic or Iges (such as flow.
Character Encoding for Data and Syntax <ul> <li>Locale's writing system</li> <li>Locale:</li> <li>English</li> <li>OS writing system</li> <li>OS writing system</li> <li>OS writing system</li> <li>English</li> <li>OS writing system</li> <li>Character encoding cant datasets are open</li> <li>English-Australia Japanese</li> </ul> If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.           Base Text Direction:         Automatic	Character Encoding for Data and Syntax       In the construction of the syntax constructi	User Interface:	English	Indiv     on ti     choi	idual words will teir language. O ce.	still flow in the correct ( nly overall text runs are	direction depending affected by this
Logale:       English       If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         O Unicode (universal chara       English-US         Character encoding cant English-UK       English-Canada         English-Australia       Japanese	Logale:       English       If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base text direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.         O Unicode (universal chara       English-US         Character encoding cant datasets are open       English-Canada         English-Australia       Japanese         Korean       Korean	<ul> <li>Character Encoding for Dat</li> <li>Locale's writing system</li> </ul>	ta and Syntax	This	setting will take	effect the next time Sta	itistic <mark>s is started.</mark>
Character encoding cant English-UK datasets are open English-Canada English-Australia Japanese	Character encoding can datasets are open English-Canada English-Australia Japanese Korean	Lo <u>c</u> ale: © Unicode (uni <u>v</u> ersal char	English OS writing system English English-US	If you dire lang rest	If you work with right-to-left text in the Syntax Editor with Base t direction set to Automatic, also select 'Optimize for right to left languages' on the Syntax Editor tab. This does not require a restart.		
Korean		Character encoding car datasets are open	nf English-UK English-Canada English-Australia Japanese Korean	Bas	e Text Direction:	Automatic	Ŧ